
Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682  
 

  Page 1 of 2 
  

 
 

Parks & Recreation Committee – Special Meeting 
Monday, April 10, 2023 

6:30 p.m. 
 

Cameron Park Community Center – Social Room 
 

2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

 
HYBRID TELECONFERENCE TEAMS MEETING LINK 

 
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-

join/19%3ameeting_YTdlMTdkNWEtOGM3Yy00ZDIzLThhOTktNDMyZTg2NzY1ZDVi%40thread.v2/0?cont
ext=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-

ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22cd95757a-7d61-4242-8a02-987ab1636810%22%7d 
 

 

Agenda 
 

Members:  Director Monique Scobey (MS), Director Tim Israel (TI), Alt. Director Sid Bazett 

Staff:  General Manager André Pichly, Parks & Facilities Superintendent Mike Grassle, 
Recreation Supervisor Kimberly Vickers 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER   

 
ROLL CALL  

Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an 
issue is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the 
consent of the Committee; individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the 
audience are asked to volunteer their name before addressing the Committee.  The Committee reserves 
the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. All demonstrations, including cheering, yelling, whistling, 
handclapping, and foot stomping which disrupts, disturbs or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the 
Committee meeting are prohibited. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTdlMTdkNWEtOGM3Yy00ZDIzLThhOTktNDMyZTg2NzY1ZDVi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22cd95757a-7d61-4242-8a02-987ab1636810%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTdlMTdkNWEtOGM3Yy00ZDIzLThhOTktNDMyZTg2NzY1ZDVi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22cd95757a-7d61-4242-8a02-987ab1636810%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTdlMTdkNWEtOGM3Yy00ZDIzLThhOTktNDMyZTg2NzY1ZDVi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22cd95757a-7d61-4242-8a02-987ab1636810%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTdlMTdkNWEtOGM3Yy00ZDIzLThhOTktNDMyZTg2NzY1ZDVi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22cd95757a-7d61-4242-8a02-987ab1636810%22%7d


Parks & Recreation Committee April 10, 2023 Page 2 of 2 
Agenda 

 
OPEN FORUM  
 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the responsibilities of 
the Committee. 

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

The following Consent Agenda items are considered routine and will be acted upon by the Committee 
without discussion with one vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a Committee 
member or a member of the audience and placed under Department Matters #_ to be discussed and acted 
upon individually. 

1. Receive and Approve - Conformed Agenda – Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting – March 6, 
2023 

2. Receive and File - Recreation Report (K. Vickers)  

3. Receive and File - Parks & Facilities Report (M. Grassle)  

4. Receive and File – Approved 2023 Parks and Recreation Committee Work Plan Final (A. Pichly)  

 

DEPARTMENT MATTERS 

5. Pickleball at Cameron Park Lake (A. Pichly) Receive, Discuss and move forward 

6. Proposed Amendment to Section 5 of Ordinance No. 2011-01 regarding Conduct in the Parks 

(A. Pichly) Review, Discuss and move forward 

 

Items for May & Future Committee Agendas 

a. Parks Gift Donation Program (May or June) 

b. Registration/Communication software Report – (May or June) 

Items to take to the Board of Directors 

c. Conduct in the Parks Ordinance 

d. Pickleball at Cameron Park Lake – recommendations for Board consideration 

 

 
MATTERS TO AND FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

 



Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682  
 

  Page 1 of 3 
  

 
 

Parks & Recreation Committee  
Monday, March 6, 2023 

6:30 p.m. 
 

Cameron Park Community Center – Social Room 
 

2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

 
HYBRID TELECONFERENCE TEAMS MEETING LINK 

 
 

Conformed Agenda 
 

Members:  Director Monique Scobey (MS), Director Tim Israel (TI), Alt. Director Sid Bazett 

Staff:  General Manager André Pichly, Parks & Facilities Superintendent Mike Grassle, 
Recreation Supervisor Kimberly Vickers 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER  @ 644pm 

 
ROLL CALL MS, TI 

Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an 
issue is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the 
consent of the Committee; individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the 
audience are asked to volunteer their name before addressing the Committee.  The Committee reserves 
the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. All demonstrations, including cheering, yelling, whistling, 
handclapping, and foot stomping which disrupts, disturbs or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the 
Committee meeting are prohibited. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  MS motion, TI seconded 

 
APPROVAL OF CONFORMED AGENDAS MS motion to approve, TI seconded 

1. Conformed Agenda – Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting – February 6, 2023 
 



Parks & Recreation Committee March 6, 2023 Page 2 of 2 
Agenda 

OPEN FORUM  
 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the responsibilities of 
the Committee. 

 
DEPARTMENT MATTERS 

2. Disc Golf Report (M. Grassle)- Information Only/Not an Action Item 

Parks Superintendent gave report on signs that have been purchased, fence building, and 

discussions regarding redesigning the course. Representatives from El Dorado Disc Sports 

provided information regarding rules of conduct, CaddyBook resource, and addressing 

trespassing and setting up processes for disc retrieval.  

Committee members requested No Tresspassing Signs, signs with retrieval information and gave 

suggestions on placement.   

 

3. Pickle Ball Task Force Update (A. Pichly/M. Grassle/A.Domingo)- Information only / Not an 

Action Item 

General Manager gave a report on the current sound mitigation efforts, including opening the 

gym for indoor pickleball 5 days a week. He shared recent conversations with Camerado Middle 

school and possibility for entering into a joint-use agreement. Committee members asked about 

the possibility of indoor pickleball during summer and possible impact on other 

programs.Recreation Supervisor discussed possible impacts. The public commented on their 

stances and requests. Committee members engaged in a discussion regarding concerns and 

asked for an item to come to the Board of Directors.  

4. Staff Oral & Written Updates 

a. Receive and File - Recreation Report (K. Vickers) Information only / Not an Action Item 

Recreation Supervisor gave report. Committee members discussed wanting to allow users to complete 

paper surveys. Recreation Supervisor discussed staffing limitations and barriers with this. Public gave 

feedback and comments. 

 

b. Receive and File - Parks & Facilities Report (M. Grassle) Information only / Not an Action 

Item 

Parks Superintendent gave staff report.  

 



Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682  
 

  Page 3 of 3 
  

5. Items for March & Future Committee Agendas 

a. Parks Gift Donation Program (April) 

b. Conduct in the Parks Report (April) 

c. Registration/Communication software Report – (May) 

 

6. Items to take to the Board of Directors 

 

 
MATTERS TO AND FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

 
ADJOURNMENT @ 8:08pm 
 

 



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  April 10, 2023 
  
FROM:  Kimberly Vickers, Recreation Supervisor 
 
AGENDA ITEM #2: RECREATION REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   RECEIVE AND FILE  
 
March was a fun and exciting month in Recreation Services. We spent the month 
preparing for our April Easter event and jump-starting our hiring.  We attended the El 
Dorado Union High School District Career fair. We were able to talk to many students 
about hiring opportunities, as well as volunteer opportunities.  We also had our first 
hiring event. Participants and parents attended, allowing us to meet with parents as part 
of the process as well. We offered 10 people seasonal positions in Aquatics or as 
Recreation Leaders.  We will have another hiring event on April 18th.  
 
In March, we also received notification that the grant application Kimberly submitted in 
December was awarded.  The grant is through Department of Developmental Services to 
increase Social Recreation opportunities throughout the state.  As part of the $99,995 
grant, we will create inclusive programs including monthly park pop-ups, bi-weekly 
social skills groups, a monthly teen world explorers’ group, and provide specialized 
training to staff. This is an amazing opportunity that will bring increased revenue, 
provided targeted programming to an identified underserved population, and place 
Cameron Park Recreation Services as a leader moving into the future, paving the way for 
other agencies to follow. 
 
We also spent the month of March creating our Summer Activity guide that is launching 
in Early April along with the opening of all summer activity registration. We have gone 
fully digital with printed copies available upon request in person. This is in-line with 
many other agencies standard of practice and was a necessary move regarding our 
budget. 
 
We had our first Make & Take class in March. We had 9 participants. They created two 
crafts, an art project, and played a game. The participants really enjoyed it.  The class saw 
approximately $130 in net revenue. We are planning a series of these classes over 
summer. 



Recreation Report April 10, 2023 Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Our community outreach survey has been available for approximately one month. Below 
are some of the current results. We have 270 current responses. We have placed it on our 
website, included in our E-newsletters, posted in every room and bathroom at the 
community center, pool gates, and emailed to contacts of user groups. We also had flyers 
at our recent event. We are working on utilizing RecTrac to send the information out as 
well. 
 
 

 

 



Recreation Report April 10, 2023 Page 3 of 4 
 

   
Recreation Programming: 
Below is a quick summary on everything that has been happening: 

• Cameron Park Lake Events & Kiosk Operations 
o Kiosk will be closed until entranced is fixed. 

 
• Camp CP 

o Spring Break Camp will be April 3rd-7th 
 Currently have 26 participants registered, IT’S FULL! 
 Summer registration will open April 10th 

 
• Aquatics: 

o We continue to have lap swim and deep-water exercise 
o We have Aquasol swim team 6 days a week 
o Lifeguard Academy is April 15, 16, 22, 23 

 
• Sports: 

o Adult Basketball league continues with the last season before summer 
break 

o Continue Sunday evening open Gym time 
o Indoor Pickleball continues 

 187 drop-ins/ $561 brought in 
 1 Punch cards sold/ $25 
 300 Annual Pass swipes 

o Third Futsal league play finished and last season starting 
 74 free agents and 4 teams registered. 

• $3012 in revenue for this league 
o Ballet continues 

 



Recreation Report April 10, 2023 Page 4 of 4 
 

o We started first pilot session with new partner Soccer Shots 
 73 Registrations/ $2920 net revenue 

 
• Community Center Programs 

o Senior Social Hour continues with participants on Tuesday and Thursday 
o Modified Zumba continues 
o Gold Nugget Quilters continue to meet on Wednesdays 
o Congregate meals continue in-person five days a week 
o Cooking with Kids class will take a break until June 
o Speaking Spanish Class continues with a new intermediate class being 

offered 
 Speaking Spanish with kids continues 

 
• Upcoming Events 

o Community Clean-up event and yard sale- April 22nd (Camerado and CSD 
parking lot) 

o Summer Kick-off/Cardboard boat races- May 27th- (CSD Pool) 
o Movie in the Park- June 9th (Christa Park) 
o Summer Spectacular- June 24th (CP Lake) 

 
Communications: 

o Continue monthly e-newsletter 
 Delivered to 2472 email addresses 
 1259 opened the email in March 

o Active engagement on Facebook, Instagram 
 Instagram Insights (last 30 days) 

• Accounts engaged- Decreased this month by 20% 
• Followers- increased again by 1.5% 

 Facebook 
• Post engagement- decreased in March by 4% 
• Followers- Gained 20 in March 

o Updating district website-  
 Page views: 47,017 
 2,941 subscribers to website (increase of 40 subscribers) 
 2,526 subscribers to E-newsletter (increase of 22 subscribers) 



  

Page 1 of 3 
 

      Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:   April 10, 2023 
  
FROM:  Michael Grassle, Parks & Facilities Superintendent 
 
AGENDA ITEM #3: PARKS & FACILITIES DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
General Information 

• The week of April 2nd was the first week this year without rain. Staff spent the 
whole week mowing, fertilizing, and spraying throughout the parks. Staff have a 
small window to prep all the parks before the spring and summer season arrive. 

• The Parks department is down 2 full time staff and 2 part time staff. The 
department will be scaling back our operations over the next 4-6 weeks while we 
look to backfill the full-time positions. Expect to see services levels and response 
times in certain areas impacted by the reduction in staff. 

• The Superintendent gave a presentation at the weekly EDCAR (El Dorado 
County Association of Realtors) meeting with an update regarding the road and 
culvert repair at Cameron Park Lake. EDCAR rents the Community Center every 
Thursday morning. 

• The department purchased a walk behind Vibraplate for compacting materials 
such as road base and decomposed grant. These past few storms caused the 
decompose granite walkways to wash away. This piece of equipment was 
purchased by the LLAD’S and Parks department budgets. It was cheaper and 
more convenient to purchase the equipment than to rent it several times 
throughout the spring. 

 

 



Parks & Facilities Division Report  April 10, 2023, Page 2 of 3 
 

Cameron Park Lake  

• Staff installed the spillway boards in the Lake on Tuesday March 28th as per the 
DWR (Department of Water Resources) permit. The spill way raises the lake 
three additional feet. 

• Staff installed the new decorative aeration fountains at both inlets of the lake. 
This project was funded using Quimby’s fees. 

• The department is working with Cameron Park Rotary to have volunteer’s assist 
District staff with replacing the two-by-six lumber on top of the observation 
deck. The plan is to have Growlersberg demo the lumber and have district staff 
repair any dry rot prior to Rotary replacing the two-by-six decking. We will be 
installing a Trex-like product in place of the original red wood design. Rotary 
will also be painting the existing guard rail fence. We plan to start this project the 
week of April 17th. Rotary is planning to donate $2,000 towards the cost of 
materials. 

• Triangle Well completed the conversion of the old Lagoon well into a usable fire 
hydrant. The hydrant was operated and inspected by Cal Fire. The hydrant 
worked flawlessly. EID (El Dorado Irrigation District) has removed the six inch 
water meet that fed the old hydrant. The six inch meter was costing the district 
about $7,000 annually. 

• Staff installed the necessary signage on the disc golf course. Baskets for holes #2 
and #17 were also relocated. Both items were discussed during the March Parks 
and Recreation Committee meeting. 

Parks and LLAD’S 

• A large heritage oak tree that is located next to the restrooms at Christa 
McAuliffe Park has a large branch with a crack where the branch meets the truck. 
Heartwood Tree inspected the large limb and recommended the tree be pruned 
to reduce the weight. Once the weight reduction is completed, we will then 
install (3) 5-ton cables to support the tree limb. Heartwood has performed the 
weight reduction and has order the cables. The playground has been closed since 
early February due to the cracked limb. We hope to have the cables installed 
within the next few weeks. If we were to remove the limb the tree would become 



Parks & Facilities Division Report  April 10, 2023, Page 3 of 3 
 

unbalanced due to the size of the limb. This could result in further pruning and 
or removal of the tree. 

• Brad Carroll has accepted the full-time Maintenance Worker I position within the 
parks division. Previously, Brad worked as a part time Maintenance Worker I in 
the parks division. Brad brings a strong maintenance background, jack-of-all-
trade’s skill set, and a positive attitude to the division. 

• Staff rebuilt the mound and the middle of the infield at Dave West Park. The 
mound has become worn out over the years and needed to be addressed. Staff 
removed a large section of turf grass and regraded the mound area. Once level 
and compacted, synthetic turf will be installed underneath the plastic/fiberglass 
mound. The synthetic turf will hold up much longer around the mound then 
natural turf grass. 

• Christa McAuliffe soccer field will be closed between April 24th through May 15th 
for annual maintenance. Staff will aerate, seed, apply pre-emergent and fertilize 
the field. The field is closed for three weeks to allow the grass seed to germinate. 

Community Center 

• Currently there is an electrical issue with the underwater swimming pool lights. 
We are working with National Aquatics to schedule a diver to come out and 
diagnose the issue. Currently about half of the lights are not working. 

• District staff Jeremy Mullins completed training to obtain his CPO (Certified Pool 
Operator) License. This will give the facilities department an additional staff who 
can perform more technical maintenance on the pool. Jeremy currently works 
evenings and weekends which adds flexibility to how and when we maintain the 
pool. 

• Facilities staff assisted recreation with installing new lane line flags above the pool. 
The old flags were worn out and coming apart. 

 Cal Fire / Growlersburg 

• Growlersberg spent two crew days removing fallen trees at Paul J. Ryan Park. 

• Growlersberg spent one crew day chipping a mountain of green waste at 
Cameron Park Lake. 



  

 
 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  April 10, 2023 
   
FROM: André Pichly, General Manager  
     
AGENDA ITEM #4: 2023 WORK PLAN FOR THE PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
On February 15, 2023, the Cameron Park Community Services District Board of 
Directors’ Standing Committees reviewed, discussed and approved the Committee 
Work Plans.  The Work Plans goals for the Parks and Recreation Committee for 2023 
were developed by staff and committee members.   
 
Parks and Recreation Committee 
Strategic Plan 2021-2026: Strategic Focus Areas 

• E.3 Create Community: Our objective is to provide positive, memorable experiences and 
establish strong relationships with residents.  Our strategy is to create a feeling of 
community through caring service delivery and programs that meet the changing needs 
of the community.   

o E.3.a  Secure funding and implement priority projects outlined in the 2020 Park 
Improvement Plan and a park sign program 

o E.3.c Seek feedback, especially reaching out to under-served areas of the 
community, to assess effectiveness of District services and plan for 
improvements.    Look for process efficiencies with technology. 

o E.3.e  Examine benefits/constraints of charging entry fees at Cameron Park Lake 
 
2023 Work Plan Goals for Parks & Recreation 

• Update Browning Reserves Study and Park Improvement Plan by July 1, 2023. (Meets 
Strategic Focus Area - E.3.a) 
 

• Implement community-wide survey inquiring about community wants and needs by 
December 31, 2023. (Meets Strategic Focus Area - E.3.c) 

 



PRC Work Plan 2023 April 10, 2023 Page 2 of 2 
 

• Identify and implement communication data base and identify funding source by 
December 31, 2023. (Meets Strategic Focus Area - E.3.c) 

   
Attachments (via hyperlinks) 
4.a - 2021-2026 Strategic Plan 
4.b – Park Improvement Plan 
4.c - Browning Reserve Study 
 
 
 

https://www.cameronpark.org/files/da198c7fe/Strategic+Plan+2021-2026.pdf
https://www.cameronpark.org/files/34b0939a6/Park-Improvement-Plan-PPt.pdf
https://www.cameronpark.org/files/1491ca1e4/Reserve+Study+2014+Cameron+Park+Cmty+Svcs+Dist.pdf


  

 
 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  April 10, 2023 
   
FROM:  André Pichly, General Manager 
 Mike Grassle, Parks & Facilities Superintendent 
  
     
AGENDA ITEM #5: Pickle Ball at Cameron Park Lake 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Receive, Discuss, and Direct 
 
Introduction 
The topic of Pickle Ball at Cameron Park Lake and the issue of noise generated during 
pickle ball play was discussed during a special meeting of the Board of Directors on 
March 28, 2023.  Following public input and Board discussion, the Board directed staff to 
bring the item back to the next board meeting (April 19th) to make a decision on the issue 
of pickle ball noise and recommended ideas for mitigation, which could include, but not 
limited to, the use of softer balls during pickle ball play, modified hours for pickle ball 
play, and/or the use of noise-reduction materials that could be placed on the tennis court 
fence.  Suspension of pickle ball play at Cameron Park Lake was also discussed. 
 
Ongoing Efforts 
Staff have worked on strategies to help reduce the negative impact pickle ball has on 
the neighbors at the north end of Cameron Park Lake, which includes limiting access to 
the Cameron Park Lake courts to authorized hours only, encouraging players to use 
softer pickle balls, paddles that result in less noise during play, and continue the 
availability of open gym access at the Community Center.   
 
Options to Endorse 

• Suspend pickle ball play at Cameron Park Lake until an alternate venue with 
adequate courts can be found or built and available for public use.  This would 
require the removal of permanent poles/nets and possible painting over of pickle 
ball court lines. 



Item 5: Pickle Ball at CPL April 10, 2023 Page 2 of 2 
               

• Continue to allow pickle ball play at Cameron Park Lake with stipulations 
including, but not limited to, equipment that generates less noise, strict 
adherence to designated hours, and/or the installation of some sort of acoustic 
barrier that could be used on the chain link fence along the north side of the 
tennis/pickle ball courts.  
 

Recommended Actions 
Until an alternate facility can be developed . . . 

• Continue/adjust defined hours for pickle ball play at Cameron Park Lake.  This 
would mean engaging the pickle ball community further in adherence to those 
posted hours, which would also comply. 

• Require the use of softer pickle balls for all play at Cameron Park Lake.  If 
quieter paddles exist, encourage or require the use of those paddles.  A 
collaborative agreement between the District and pickle ball community could 
help facilitate this transition.  

• Purchase and install all-weather acoustic blankets/sound barriers to help 
reduce direct line-of-sight noise.   

• Continue open gym access for pickle ball play. 
• Staff recommends that the District continue to look for locations that could 

accommodate pickle ball play or that could be developed as a dedicated pickle 
ball facility. Pickle ball is a growing sport, and as our population ages the sport 
of pickle ball may increase in popularity.  A new Cameron Park pickle ball venue 
that includes a greater number of courts and quality amenities, such as benches 
and lighting, would meet the needs of the pickle ball playing community.  
Should a suitable location be identified, the District should begin developing a 
financing plan for design, land acquisition (if not on CPCSD property), 
construction, and maintenance. 

 
Staff does not recommend the suspension of pickle ball play at Cameron Park Lake   
• Per County Code Section 130.37.020 – Exemptions: noise sources shall be exempt from the 

standards of Chapter 17.37 for activities conducted in public parks.  That said, staff 
supports efforts to reduce pickle ball noise without eliminating pickle ball from 
Cameron Park Lake. 

• It would have a negative impact on the pickle ball community which greatly benefits from 
the physical activity and positive social interaction the participants enjoy.  

• Should it become necessary to lock the courts to prevent unauthorized pickle ball play, it 
would prevent tennis from being played as well when the courts are locked. 

 
 



  

 
 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  April 10, 2023 
   
FROM:  André Pichly, General Manager 
     
AGENDA ITEM #6: CONDUCT IN PARKS – AMENDMENT OF SECTION 5 OF 

ORDINANCE NO. 2001-01 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Review, Endorse and Forward to the Board 
 
Introduction and Background 
Public parks are spaces set aside for the use and enjoyment of community members.  
Parks provide outdoor spaces to play and exercise, and they allow access to the serenity 
and inspiration of nature.   Public parks are spaces managed by agencies, such as the 
Cameron Park Community Services District, on behalf of the community members it 
serves. As such, public parks in Cameron Park are the property of the Cameron Park 
Community Services District, and use of parks is conditional.  
 
On June 6, 2022, staff asked that the Parks and Recreation Commission review and 
comment on Ordinance No. 2001-01 , Section 5: Conduct Generally, and consider the list 
of 24 different prohibited activities ranging from making fires to responsibilities of 
animal owners to the posting of handbills.  Staff expressed concern that the list was 
missing language that would prohibit or restrict activities in Cameron Park public parks 
for commercial use without the consent or approval of the CSD.  Staff recommended 
that there should be controls over private individuals or businesses using CSD-owned 
parks in a profit-making venture, regardless of how profitable that venture is. As the 
CSD owns the parks in this community, staff recommended that the Parks and 
Recreation Committee consider language that could be used in an amendment to the 
Section 5 of Ordinance No. 2001-01.  The Committee asked that the entire ordinance be 
reviewed by staff, brought up to modern standards, and brought back to a future Parks 
and Recreation Committee meeting for review and endorsement before this item move 
forward to the Board. 
 
Discussion 
The amendment would prohibit commercial activities in public parks without 
permission and prior agreement with the Cameron Park Community Services District 



Item 6: Conduct In Parks April 10, 2023 Page 2 of 2 
Section 5 of Ordinance 2001-01 

and would allow the CSD to address the individuals and private businesses that might 
use CSD parks for commercial gain, and to cease use of CSD parks and facilities unless 
an agreement has been reached between the two parties, executed by the CSD, and that 
the private party has provided the CSD with a certificate of insurance listing the 
Cameron Park Community Services District as the additionally insured.  In addition, 
Section 5 has been reviewed and cleaned up to be clear and easily understood. 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Parks and Recreation Committee review, endorse, and 
forward to the Board of Directors proposed amendment to Section 5 of Ordinance No. 
2001-01 for Board consideration and approval. This would require first and second 
readings with public hearings. 
 
Attachments: 
6a - Section 5 of Ordinance No. 2001-01, revised 
6b - Section 5 of Ordinance No. 2001-01, redlined version 
 



SECTION 5. Conduct - Generally. It shall beis unlawful for any person, within the limits of 

any Cameron Park Community Services District park, or within any property or facility which is 

owned, leased, under the control of, maintained or operated by the Cameron Park Community 

Services District, to do any of the following: 

A. Fires. No person shall make or kindle a fire within any park except in stoves or other 

facilities specifically provided by the Ddistrict or in a container/BBQ commercially 

manufactured for such purposes. 

B. Closed To Public. No person shall enter any park or area of any park which is closed to the 

public. 

C. Firearms, Weapons, and Fireworks. No person shall carry or discharge any firearm, rifle, 

pistol, sling shot, bow and arrow or other similar device or rocket, torpedo or other type of 

explosivethat launches a projectile without the prior written permission of the general 

managerGeneral Manager, nor shall any person carry into or use any other object within a 

park with the intent of disturbing the peace of any person by means of noise or otherwise. 

This prohibition shall not apply to persons engaging in or traveling to target practice 

conducted in accordance with appropriate standards of safety at an archery, skeet, or target 

range authorized and provided by the Ddistrict for such purpose; nor within the scope of 

official duties. Any device carried into or used within a park in violation of these 

provisions is subject to confiscation by any law enforcement officer or duly authorized 

district employee and, in the event thereof, shall be thereaftersuch weapons or fireworks 

shall be disposed of in accordance with the law, including without limitation any applicable 

Ddistrict regulation. Persons in Vviolation of this subsection shall be punished as a 

misdemeanorare subject to arrest and fines by law enforcement. 

D. Alcohol. No person shall possess or consume any alcoholic beverages in any area, park 

roadway, grounds or recreation center, or in any building or structure, thereon,  where it is 

expressly prohibited and posted as such, without first obtaining a permit to do so from the 

general managerGeneral Manager. 

E. Noise. No person shall willfully make or continue a loud, unnecessary, or unusual noise or 

indulge in riotous, boisterous, threatening, or indecent conduct, or abusive, threatening, 

profane, or indecent language within a park in such a manner as to disturb the public peace 



or to materially disrupt the quiet enjoyment of reasonable persons of normal sensitivity 

who are lawfully present in the park or on nearby properties. 

F. Amplified Sound In Parks. No person shall cause theuse amplification of soundequipment 

within a park if the noise level caused thereby causes discomfort or annoyance to any 

considerable number of reasonable persons of normal sensitivity lawfully present in the 

park or disturbs the public peace or materially disturbs the quiet of such persons, except 

pursuant to a permit issued by the general managerGeneral Manager. The general 

managerGeneral Manager may impose reasonable conditions, in writing, in any permit 

including designating the location of each bandstand andpermitted gathering, and the 

position of each loudspeaker so as to cause the least amount of disturbance to other 

persons, both within and without outside the park. 

G. Public Use Roads. The provisions of the California Vehicle Code shall be applicable in all 

parks upon any roadway, or place which is publicly maintained and open to the use of the 

public for vehicular travel. Violations of the Vehicle code within a park shall be enforced 

and prosecuted in accordance with the provisions of the State of Californiathereof. 

Appropriate signs shall be posted advising of any vehicular travel restrictions in force. 

H. Non-Public Roads. No person shall drive or otherwise operate a vehicle in a park, upon any 

surface other than those maintained and open to the public for purposes of vehicular travel. 

This provision does not apply to any electrically driven wheelchair carrying a physically 

incapacitated person with limited physical mobility. 

I. Skateboards, Skates and Roller Blades. No person shall ride a skateboard, in-line or roller 

skates or roller blades in any park in an unsafe hazardous manner so as to endanger the 

person skating or others or in an area specifically prohibiting sameskating or skateboarding. 

Any person riding a skateboard, in-line or roller skates, or roller blades in the park or in a 

skateboard facility must wear a helmet, elbow pads, and knee pads, and any person failing 

to do so will be subject to citation. 

J. Bicycles. No person shall ride a bicycle within a park where it is expressly prohibited. 

K. Prohibition of Animals in Parks, Exceptions. No person shall cause, permit or allow any 

animal owned or possessed by him, or any animal in the custody or control of such person, 

to be present bring any domesticated animals in any park except: 



1. Equine animals (horses or ponies) being led or ridden under reasonable control 

upon a bridle path, trail or center authorized and provided for such purpose; 

2. Dogs are prohibited on all park/facilities where posted as such. Specially trained 

service dogs which are being used by totally or partially blind, deaf, hearing 

impaired or physically handicapped persons to aid and/or guide them in their 

movements shall be permitted in all areas; 

3. In connection with specific activities authorized by the general managerGeneral 

Manager and when acting in accordance with all conditions attached to such 

authorization. 

L. Responsibilities of Animal Owner. Each person who owns or has custody, possession, or 

control of an animal within a park where such animals are permitted shall not permit allow 

the such animal to: 

1) Allow any such animals to be unleashed/restrained 

2) annoy, harass, nip, maul, or bite any person or persons; 

3) damage or destroy any property or thing of value; 

4) disturb the peace and quiet of others by allowing or encouraging the loud barking or 

making of unusual noises; and 

5) defecate without promptly collecting, removing, and properly disposing of all such 

fecal matter. 

M. Protection, of Animals in Park. No person shall hunt, frighten, chase, set a snare fortrap, 

catch, injure, or maltreat mistreat any domestic or other wild animal within a park, nor 

shall any person trap or fish with hook and line, seine, trap, spear or net, or by any other 

means, in any pond, lake, stream, or water within a park.  Fishing with hook and line is 

permitted at Cameron Park Lake. , except at a place specifically designated and provided 

for such purpose. Law enforcement personnel, animal control officers, Ddistrict 

employees and contractors acting with expressed written permission from the District 

within the scope of their official duties or district contract obligations are accepted 

exempt from this prohibition. A violation of this subsection shall be a 

misdemeanor.subject to arrest and fines by law enforcement. 

N. Damaging Property Prohibited. No person shall cut, break, injure, deface, or 

disturbintentionally damage any tree, shrub, plant, rock, building, cage, pen, monument, 



fence, bench, or other structure, apparatus, on District or property No person shall , or 

pluck, pull up, cut, take damage or remove any shrub, bush, plant, flower, or mark or 

write upon, paint, or deface in any manner any building, monument, fence, bench, or 

other structure within a park; A violation of this subsection shall be subject to arrest and 

fines by law enforcement.district employees and contractors for the district acting within 

the scope of a contract with the district excepted. Violation of this subsection shall be a 

misdemeanor. 

O. Damaging, Disturbing Land Prohibited. No person shall cut or remove any wood, turf, 

grass, soil, rock, sand, gravel, or fertilizer from a park or from any place within a park; A 

violation of this subsection shall be subject to arrest and fines by law enforcement.district 

employees and contractors for the district acting within the scope of a contract with the 

district excepted. 

P. Water Activities. No person shall swim, fish in, bathe, wade, row, sail, or operate any 

boat, craft or other device, on or in any pond, lake, stream or water within or into a part, 

except at such place or places designed and provided by the Ddistrict for such use; nor 

shall any person pollute the water of any fountain, pond, lake, stream, or reservoir within 

a park. 

Q. Prohibited Presence. No person shall tent, camp, lodge, or otherwise be present in any 

park after dusk. or before 7 a.m. or at times otherwise posted, except when lawfully in 

attendance at an event permitting such approved by the general managerGeneral 

Manager. 

R. Waste Liquids and Refuse. No person shall dispose of dishwater or other waste liquids or 

dispose of any garbage, empty container, or other solid waste material within a park, 

other than in receptacles or other facilities provided for such disposal. 

S. Hazardous Activities. No person shall engage in model airplane flying, propelling a 

rocket or missile of any type, driving of golf balls, archery or any game of a hazardous 

nature within a park, except at such places as shall be specifically designated and 

authorized by the district for such purpose. 

T. Posting of Handbills or, Advertising. It is unlawful for any person to distribute, , cause to 

be distributed, or suffer, allow or permit the distribution of any handbill, dodger, circular, 

booklet, card, pamphlet, sheetpromotional materials or written/ or printed notice 



advertising any commodity, article, merchandise, business activity, person or thing in or 

upon any park, grounds  or recreation centerDistrict building, or to post or affix cause to 

be posted or affixed or permit to.be posted or affixed toon any tree, shrub, plant, fence, 

building, structure, monument, wall, tablet, apparatus, bridge, post, hole, bench, gate m: 

otheror other such physical object with any park, grounds or recreation or District 

building, center any handbill, dodger, circular, booklet, card, pamphlet, sheet or written 

or printed notice advertising any commodity, article, merchandise, business, person, thing 

or activity unless written permission is obtained from the general managerGeneral 

Manager. 

U. Meetings. No person shall hold any meeting, services, concert, exercise, parade, or 

exhibition in any park or facility without prior written authorization from the general 

managerGeneral Manager, except that this subsection shall not be construed to deprive 

any person of a right protected by state or federal law or Constitution. 

V. Restroom Use. No person, excepting children six years of age or younger accompanied in 

such facility by an adult or persons requiring handicapped assistance, shall use any 

restroom, washroom, or dressing facility within a park when the same has been 

designated for persons of the opposite sex. 

W. Glass Containers. No person shall transport into or dispose of within any beach or 

swimming area, a food or drink container made wholly or partially of glass, whether or 

not such container is empty, partially filled, or full; excepting baby bottles or medicine 

containers.. 

X. Smoking, Chewing Tobacco, Snuff; and Spitting. No person shall smoke, chew, dip, 

expectoratespit, partake or indulge in tobacco in any form in any Ddistrict building or 

facility in any area signed as prohibiting suchthe use of tobacco products. It shall be 

unlawful for any person to litter, extinguish, dispose of or expectorate spit tobacco in any 

form in an unsafe or unsanitary manner. 

Y. Within the boundaries of any park or recreation facility, no person shall sell, vend, 

peddle, expose, offer for sale, or distribute after sale to the public, any merchandise, 

service, or property, or sell tickets for any event, nor shall any person distribute, circulate, 

give away, throw, or deposit in or on any park facility any handbills, circulars, pamphlets, 

papers, or advertisements, which material calls the public attention in any way to any 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Title, Indent: Left:  0.25", Line spacing:  1.5
lines, Tab stops:  0.38", Left + Not at  0.5"



article or service for sale or hire, nor within any park facility shall any person solicit or 

collect donations of money or other goods from the public, without express approval of 

the General Manager for such activity within the specific park or recreation facility or as 

part of a Cameron Park Community Services District sponsored event.     

X.Z. A request for approval as required by this section shall be submitted to the 

General Manager for any activity which requires a written contractual agreement. The 

General Manager may approve any request unless, in the discretion of the General 

Manager, the request is an unusual one which should be submitted to the Board of 

Directors for consideration and approval. 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold



SECTION 5. Conduct - Generally. It shall beis unlawful for any person, within the limits of 
any Cameron Park Community Services District park, or within any property or facility which is 
owned, leased, under the control of, maintained or operated by the Cameron Park Community 
Services District, to do any of the following: 

A. Fires. No person shall make or kindle a fire within any park except in stoves or other 
facilities specifically provided by the Ddistrict or in a container/BBQ commercially 
manufactured for such purposes. 

B. Closed To Public. No person shall enter any park or area of any park which is closed to the 
public. 

C. Firearms, Weapons, and Fireworks. No person shall carry or discharge any firearm, rifle, 
pistol, sling shot, bow and arrow or other similar device or rocket, torpedo or other type of 
explosivethat launches a projectile without the prior written permission of the general 
managerGeneral Manager, nor shall any person carry into or use any other object within a 
park with the intent of disturbing the peace of any person by means of noise or otherwise. 
This prohibition shall not apply to persons engaging in or traveling to target practice 
conducted in accordance with appropriate standards of safety at an archery, skeet, or target 
range authorized and provided by the Ddistrict for such purpose; nor within the scope of 
official duties. Any device carried into or used within a park in violation of these 
provisions is subject to confiscation by any law enforcement officer or duly authorized 
district employee and, in the event thereof, shall be thereaftersuch weapons or fireworks 
shall be disposed of in accordance with the law, including without limitation any applicable 
Ddistrict regulation. Persons in Vviolation of this subsection shall be punished as a 
misdemeanorare subject to arrest and fines by law enforcement. 

D. Alcohol. No person shall possess or consume any alcoholic beverages in any area, park 
roadway, grounds or recreation center, or in any building or structure, thereon,  where it is 
expressly prohibited and posted as such, without first obtaining a permit to do so from the 
general managerGeneral Manager. 

E. Noise. No person shall willfully make or continue a loud, unnecessary, or unusual noise or 
indulge in riotous, boisterous, threatening, or indecent conduct, or abusive, threatening, 
profane, or indecent language within a park in such a manner as to disturb the public peace 
or to materially disrupt the quiet enjoyment of reasonable persons of normal sensitivity 
who are lawfully present in the park or on nearby properties. 

F. Amplified Sound In Parks. No person shall cause theuse amplification of soundequipment 
within a park if the noise level caused thereby causes discomfort or annoyance to any 
considerable number of reasonable persons of normal sensitivity lawfully present in the 
park or disturbs the public peace or materially disturbs the quiet of such persons, except 
pursuant to a permit issued by the general managerGeneral Manager. The general 
managerGeneral Manager may impose reasonable conditions, in writing, in any permit 
including designating the location of each bandstand andpermitted gathering, and the 
position of each loudspeaker so as to cause the least amount of disturbance to other 
persons, both within and without outside the park. 

G. Public Use Roads. The provisions of the California Vehicle Code shall be applicable in all 
parks upon any roadway, or place which is publicly maintained and open to the use of the 
public for vehicular travel. Violations of the Vehicle code within a park shall be enforced 
and prosecuted in accordance with the provisions of the State of Californiathereof. 
Appropriate signs shall be posted advising of any vehicular travel restrictions in force. 



H. Non-Public Roads. No person shall drive or otherwise operate a vehicle in a park, upon any 
surface other than those maintained and open to the public for purposes of vehicular travel. 
This provision does not apply to any electrically driven wheelchair carrying a physically 
incapacitated person with limited physical mobility. 

I. Skateboards, Skates and Roller Blades. No person shall ride a skateboard, in-line or roller 
skates or roller blades in any park in an unsafe hazardous manner so as to endanger the 
person skating or others or in an area specifically prohibiting sameskating or skateboarding. 
Any person riding a skateboard, in-line or roller skates, or roller blades in the park or in a 
skateboard facility must wear a helmet, elbow pads, and knee pads, and any person failing 
to do so will be subject to citation. 

J. Bicycles. No person shall ride a bicycle within a park where it is expressly prohibited. 
K. Prohibition of Animals in Parks, Exceptions. No person shall cause, permit or allow any 

animal owned or possessed by him, or any animal in the custody or control of such person, 
to be present bring any domesticated animals in any park except: 

1. Equine animals (horses or ponies) being led or ridden under reasonable control 
upon a bridle path, trail or center authorized and provided for such purpose; 

2. Dogs are prohibited on all park/facilities where posted as such. Specially trained 
service dogs which are being used by totally or partially blind, deaf, hearing 
impaired or physically handicapped persons to aid and/or guide them in their 
movements shall be permitted in all areas; 

3. In connection with specific activities authorized by the general managerGeneral 
Manager and when acting in accordance with all conditions attached to such 
authorization. 

L. Responsibilities of Animal Owner. Each person who owns or has custody, possession, or 
control of an animal within a park where such animals are permitted shall not permit allow 
the such animal to: 

1) Allow any such animals to be unleashed/restrained 
2) aAnnoy, harass, nip, maul, or bite any person or persons; 
3) dDamage or destroy any property or thing of value; 
4) dDisturb the peace and quiet of others by allowing or encouraging the loud barking 

or making of unusual noises; and 
5) dDefecate without promptly collecting, removing, and properly disposing of all 

such fecal matter. 
M. Protection, of Animals in Park. No person shall hunt, frighten, chase, set a snare fortrap, 

catch, injure, or maltreat mistreat any domestic or other wild animal within a park, nor 
shall any person trap or fish with hook and line, seine, trap, spear or net, or by any other 
means, in any pond, lake, stream, or water within a park.  Fishing with hook and line is 
permitted at Cameron Park Lake, except at a place specifically designated and provided 
for such purpose. Law enforcement personnel, animal control officers, Ddistrict 
employees and contractors acting with expressed written permission from the District 
within the scope of their official duties or district contract obligations are accepted 
exempt from this prohibition. A violation of this subsection shall be a 
misdemeanor.subject to arrest and fines by law enforcement. 

N. Damaging Property Prohibited. No person shall cut, break, injure, deface, or 
disturbintentionally damage any tree, shrub, plant, rock, building, cage, pen, monument, 
fence, bench, or other structure, apparatus, on Districtor property No person shall , or 



pluck, pull up, cut, take damage or remove any shrub, bush, plant, flower, or mark or 
write upon, paint, or deface in any manner any building, monument, fence, bench, or 
other structure within a park; A violation of this subsection shall be subject to arrest and 
fines by law enforcement.district employees and contractors for the district acting within 
the scope of a contract with the district excepted. Violation of this subsection shall be a 
misdemeanor. 

O. Damaging, Disturbing Land Prohibited. No person shall cut or remove any wood, turf, 
grass, soil, rock, sand, gravel, or fertilizer from a park or from any place within a park; A 
violation of this subsection shall be subject to arrest and fines by law enforcement.district 
employees and contractors for the district acting within the scope of a contract with the 
district excepted. 

P. Water Activities. No person shall swim, fish in, bathe, wade, row, sail, or operate any 
boat, craft or other device, on or in any pond, lake, stream or water within or into a part, 
except at such place or places designed and provided by the Ddistrict for such use; nor 
shall any person pollute the water of any fountain, pond, lake, stream, or reservoir within 
a park. 

Q. Prohibited Presence. No person shall tent, camp, lodge, or otherwise be present in any 
park after dusk. or before 7 a.m. or at times otherwise posted, except when lawfully in 
attendance at an event permitting such approved by the general managerGeneral 
Manager. 

R. Waste Liquids and Refuse. No person shall dispose of dishwater or other waste liquids or 
dispose of any garbage, empty container, or other solid waste material within a park, 
other than in receptacles or other facilities provided for such disposal. 

S. Hazardous Activities. No person shall engage in model airplane flying, propelling a 
rocket or missile of any type, driving of golf balls, archery or any game of a hazardous 
nature within a park, except at such places as shall be specifically designated and 
authorized by the district for such purpose. 

T. Posting of Handbills or, Advertising. It is unlawful for any person to distribute, , cause to 
be distributed, or suffer, allow or permit the distribution of any handbill, dodger, circular, 
booklet, card, pamphlet, sheetpromotional materials or written/ or printed notice 
advertising any commodity, article, merchandise, business activity, person or thing in or 
upon any park, grounds  or recreation centerDistrict building, or to post or affix cause to 
be posted or affixed or permit to.be posted or affixed toon any tree, shrub, plant, fence, 
building, structure, monument, wall, tablet, apparatus, bridge, post, hole, bench, gate m: 
otheror other such physical object with any park, grounds or recreation or District 
building, center any handbill, dodger, circular, booklet, card, pamphlet, sheet or written 
or printed notice advertising any commodity, article, merchandise, business, person, thing 
or activity unless written permission is obtained from the general managerGeneral 
Manager. 

U. Meetings. No person shall hold any meeting, services, concert, exercise, parade, or 
exhibition in any park or facility without prior written authorization from the general 
managerGeneral Manager, except that this subsection shall not be construed to deprive 
any person of a right protected by state or federal law or Constitution. 

V. Restroom Use. No person, excepting children six years of age or younger accompanied in 
such facility by an adult or persons requiring handicapped assistance, shall use any 



restroom, washroom, or dressing facility within a park when the same has been 
designated for persons of the opposite sex. 

W. Glass Containers. No person shall transport into or dispose of within any beach or 
swimming area, a food or drink container made wholly or partially of glass, whether or 
not such container is empty, partially filled, or full; excepting baby bottles or medicine 
containers.. 

X. Smoking, Chewing Tobacco, Snuff; and Spitting. No person shall smoke, chew, dip, 
expectoratespit, partake or indulge in tobacco in any form in any Ddistrict building or 
facility in any area signed as prohibiting suchthe use of tobacco products. It shall be 
unlawful for any person to litter, extinguish, dispose of or expectorate spit tobacco in any 
form in an unsafe or unsanitary manner. 

Y. Within the boundaries of any park or recreation facility, no person shall sell, vend, 
peddle, expose, offer for sale, or distribute after sale to the public, any merchandise, 
service, or property, or sell tickets for any event, nor shall any person distribute, circulate, 
give away, throw, or deposit in or on any park facility any handbills, circulars, pamphlets, 
papers, or advertisements, which material calls the public attention in any way to any 
article or service for sale or hire, nor within any park facility shall any person solicit or 
collect donations of money or other goods from the public, without express approval of 
the General Manager for such activity within the specific park or recreation facility or as 
part of a Cameron Park Community Services District sponsored event.     

X.Z. A request for approval as required by this section shall be submitted to the 
General Manager for any activity which requires a written contractual agreement. The 
General Manager may approve any request unless, in the discretion of the General 
Manager, the request is an unusual one which should be submitted to the Board of 
Directors for consideration and approval. 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Title, Indent: Left:  0.25", Line spacing: 
Multiple 1.15 li, Tab stops:  0.38", Left + Not at  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold


